
 
 

Mandan Community Beautification Committee 
Thursday, February 12, 2015 

7:30 a.m. 
Mandan City Hall 

205 Second Avenue NW 
 
 

A. Roll Call:  
1. Roll call of committee members and liaisons 

Chairman Damian Huettl called the meeting to order. Members 
present are indicated with a. Program Coordinator Krista Harju, 
Sgt. David Mills and City Planner Bob Decker were also in 
attendance. 
 
B. Consider minutes from meeting on January 8, 2015 
Dennis Bullinger moved to approve the minutes from the Jan. 8, 
2015 meeting. Amy Schmidt seconded. Motion passed 
unanimously.   
 
C. Consider letters of interest for service on the Community 

Beautification Committee and recommendations to City 
Commission 

     1. Brian Dehnert  
     2.  Travis Hirsch 
The committee received two letters of interest after the opening 
was publicized in December. Neither applicant was able to 
attend the meeting. Jim Neubauer said he doesn’t think the 
committee is limited to one appointment, but he would like to 
look back at the City Commission’s motion in re-activating the 
committee before moving forward with two appointments. The 
committee will continue discussing appointments at its next 
meeting.   
 
D. Continue review of draft property maintenance code 

(Overland Park, KS example)  
1. Sections 17-05-20-21 – Outdoor Storage  - Review other 

city examples from Muni-Code  
i. Discuss commercial and residential trash containers 

2. Section 17-05-23 Violation; Penalty 
3. Section 17-05-24 Construction 

 
1. Bob Decker provided samples of outdoor storage and outdoor waste ordinances from other 
communities. The requirement of concealment for outdoor storage, specifically in a closed 
building or the use of opaque fencing, is common in the ordinances provided.  
 
Decker presented a draft ordinance regarding garbage collection that addresses hours for and 
placement of garbage containers and requires secured trash bags. Ellen Huber questioned if 
substantive changes could be made during the Municode upgrade rather than as a new 
ordinance. Decker said these changes will need to be noted as additional adjustments in the 

Committee Members: 
Chairperson 
 Damian Huettl, Citizen 
Term: 2013-2016 
 
Vice Chairperson 
 Laurie Leingang, Citizen 
Term: 2013-2016 
 
 Tammy Lapp-Harris, Citizen 
Term: 2015-2018 
 
 Amy Schmidt, Citizen 
Term: 2015-2018 
 
 Dale Schwindt, Citizen 
Term: 2013-2015 
 
 Vacant, Citizen  
Term: 2013-2015 
 
 Jim Neubauer, 
Administration 
 
 Doug Lalim, Assessing & 
Building Inspection 
 
 Ellen Huber, Business 
Development & 
Communications 
 
 Keith Johnson, Custer 
Health 
 
 Steve Nardello, Fire 
 
 Justin Froseth, Planning & 
Engineering 
 
 Dennis Bullinger, Police 
 
 Jeff Wright, Public Works 
 



Community Beautification Committee 
Minutes – Feb. 12, 2015 

2 
 

language, so that they are part of the public notice. He has them itemized. Decker recommending 
adopting the Municode update on garbage storage as he presented it. He will provide an outline 
of what he modified at the next meeting. Huber suggested adding language that addressed 
storage of garbage containers, requiring them to be out of view on non-collection days.  

 
Johnson asked how it would be enforced. Bullinger said it is complaint driven. He said many 
complaints come in regarding trash cans blocking the sidewalk on Sunset Drive, because there is 
no boulevard for people to place their trash cans.  
 
Decker suggested that garbage can be set out for pick-up after 6 p.m. the night before collection 
and must be put away by 10 p.m. on the day of collection. Huettl expressed concern about the 
requirements, as some people may need to put their trash out early if they are leaving town. 
Huber and Neubauer agreed the ordinance is meant to address chronic offenders, not the 
occasional violators. 
 
Huettl also expressed concern about the wind carrying trash containers away. He said he prefers 
to leave bags on the curb, outside of a container. Johnson said the concern about the containers 
cannot be changed through ordinance. He recommended the purchase of rolling containers. 
Decker said bags need to be secured, as lighter bags could blow away. Laurie Leingang pointed 
out there is a requirement for containers in the draft ordinance, referencing the language, 
“secured in a cart or another receptacle.” 
 
Neubauer said the discussion of rolling containers or totes will occur during the 2016 budget 
talks. The contract with Armstrong Sanitation for residential garbage pick-up will expire in 
November 2016. He has spoken with Jeff Wright in Public Works about who would be the 
provider of the containers, the City or Armstrong. This ordinance would be an interim step.  
 
Decker suggested requiring an organized and screened location for waste containers for 
industrial and commercial properties. He mentioned it may be difficult for some downtown 
properties. Huber said she wasn’t aware of anything in place that required the screening of 
garbage containers in commercial areas. Decker said he made improvements to the existing 
language, providing stronger requirements. Property owners with lots with limited space may 
enter into a formal agreement with a neighboring property owner to share garbage containers. 
The Mandan Architectural Review Commission requires new or remodeled commercial 
properties to screen garbage containers. Huber said the ordinance would be a requirement for 
existing properties. Doug Lalim thought it would be difficult to enforce. Decker suggested 
enforcing it through health requirements.  
 
Huettl suggested changing the language in subsection 117-6-14, which requires three-sided or 
enclosed area to secure garbage containers. Huetll said the current language suggests a chain 
link fence would be appropriate, as it doesn’t require an opaque enclosure. Decker will update 
the language to include the requirement of an opaque enclosure.  
 
Decker also provided several examples on outdoor storage. Johnson said outdoor storage needs 
to be screened. It cannot be out in the open and must be resistant to rodents and fireproof.  
 
Dale Schwindt said something needs to be done regarding refuse blowing from construction 
sites. Lalim said the City currently has a policy that requires construction sites to have a 



Community Beautification Committee 
Minutes – Feb. 12, 2015 

3 
 

dumpster. If the dumpster is more than half-full, it needs to be covered. The City has been 
monitoring and has temporarily shut down jobs until the area is cleaned up and the site is in 
compliance with the policy. Lalim said he plans to incorporate language regarding this issue in 
Title 14, which would create an ordinance. The ordinance would allow for a fine. The most 
difficult part is enforcement. He thinks an ordinance would help, but he doesn’t recommend 
making it tougher than surrounding communities, as it could result in a loss of builders.  
 
Huettl noted that it was good to hear that the City is aggressive in addressing the issue of 
garbage associated with construction. He asked why the City isn’t as aggressive in addressing 
similar issues for existing properties, such as properties that have junk cars, furniture or 
garbage sitting outside of their house. Lalim noted that construction issues are somewhat easier 
to stay on top of because inspection staff are at sites routinely. The other issues are complaint- 
driven. Once hired, the code enforcement officer can help address these issues.  Bullinger said if 
a vehicle is operable and is not dragging debris on the street, there is nothing the police 
department can do about a vehicle parked on grass. He suggested looking into possible 
amendments to the current ordinance.  
 
Leingang referenced language in a Dickinson ordinance regarding solid waste that reads, “If 
solid waste will not fit in containers, sealed plastic bags weighing less than 50 pounds may be 
placed adjacent to solid waste containers.” She recommended including similar language in 
117-6-9 regulations governing residential area garbage collection. 
 
Huber recommended including language addressing portable storage containers and the time 
limits regarding the duration they can be used. Decker said it is a zoning or building permit 
issue. He will take a look at it.  
 
Decker will provide the current ordinance and a detailed list of changes with strikeouts and 
underlines for the committee’s review. He will also bring a printout outlining placement for 
outdoor storage. The working draft will be sent to Municode in February, but edits can be made 
during the adoption change. Any major changes to how the City does business will need to be 
made during a second phase.  
 
2-3. City Attorney Malcolm Brown reviewed the work done so far. He suggested having 
conversation with the City Commission prior to him drafting the ordinance and introducing the 
changes recommended by the committee. Neubauer invited him to the March meeting to share 
his thoughts.  

 
E. Update on status of comparison of existing language in Mandan Municipal Code Title 17 

with the recommended changes to the Overland Park, KS example. 
This will also be discussed with Brown at a future meeting.  
 
F. Discussion regarding graffiti remediation  
Decker provided some examples of graffiti remediation ordinances from other communities. 
Huettl said he preferred the Billings ordinance. He said the wording was plain and clear, and it 
gave property owners a reasonable amount of time to correct the problem, which is ten days 
after being notified. Leingang recommended charging non-compliant property owners the costs 
the City would incur to remove the graffiti, a penalty and administrative costs. Neubauer 
suggested a minimum fee of $100. 



Community Beautification Committee 
Minutes – Feb. 12, 2015 

4 
 

Johnson felt the Great Falls ordinance provided a good list of what is prohibited. Decker said 
the two ordinances could be blended. Huettl didn’t like that the Great Falls ordinance required 
graffiti to be removed within 72 hours after it appeared. He preferred the Billings ordinance, as 
it required a notice. Decker and Brown will draft language for the committee’s review. Decker 
will provide a draft for the March meeting.  
 
Huber moved to pursue a draft ordinance reflective of the Billings ordinance. Leingang 
seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The language will be added to the nuisance ordinance in Title 17. Neubauer will ask Brown to 
draft an ordinance to incorporate into the City’s existing code. The committee will review the 
draft at the next meeting. 
 
G. Plan for 2015 Community Clean-Up Event 
Amy Schmidt met with Deb Seminary to plan a date for the Community Clean-Up event. They 
agreed to schedule the Community Clean-Up for Saturday, May 2 from 9 a.m. – 12 p.m. Huber 
suggested hosting a picnic after the event. Schmidt asked if committee members would help in 
marketing the event. Information will be included it in the next newsletter and on Facebook. She 
encouraged committee members to like the “Keep Mandan Beautiful” page on Facebook and 
share it with friends. She will also appear at Country Morning Today and URL Radio to promote 
the event. 
   
H. Other Business 
Committee members inquired about the status of hiring a code enforcement officer. Neubauer 
explained that the position has been posted online and that there are five to six applicants to 
date. The timeline for interviews and hiring is somewhat depending upon the schedule of police 
department leadership. 
 
I. Future Meetings 

1. Thursday, March 12, 2015  7:30 a.m. 
2. Thursday, April 9, 2015      7:30 a.m. 

 
J.    Adjourn 
Johnson moved to adjourn the meeting. Schmidt seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
FUTURE 2014-15 AGENDA ITEMS: 

1. Review suggested changes to proposed property maintenance code 
2. Consider signage to discourage littering 

 
Items for follow-up prior to next meeting 

• Bob Decker will provide the current garbage ordinance and a detailed list of changes 
with strikeouts and underlines for the committee’s review. He will also bring a printout 
outlining placement for outdoor storage. 

• Bob Decker will draft a graffiti remediation ordinance to be presented at the March 
meeting. 



Community Beautification Committee 
Minutes – Feb. 12, 2015 

5 
 

• City Attorney Malcolm Brown will attend the March meeting to discuss Sections 17-05-
23-24 and the comparison of existing language in Mandan Municipal Code Title 17 with 
the recommended changes to the Overland Park, KS example. 

 


